
Minutes 
Youth Council Meeting 

Georgia Mountains Workforce Development 
January 15, 2013 ~ Northeast Georgia Housing Authority 

                Toccoa, GA  
 

 
The Georgia Mountains Workforce Development Youth Council met on Tuesday, 
January 15, 2012 at the Northeast Georgia Housing Authority, in Toccoa, GA.  All those 
present registered on a sign in sheet. 
 

Members Staff 
Joan Hughes Jessica Williams 

Lee Highsmith Danielle Avelar 
Brenda Dalin Samantha O’Day 

Tina Pratt  
Chevalier Ruff  

  
Jessica Williams, Youth Supervisor called meeting to order and welcomed attendees.  
 
Jessica instructed all attendees to look over the meeting minutes from the October 18, 
2012 meeting and the November 1, 2012 meeting.  Jessica reminded the group that 
there was a second meeting called to re-vote on items due to the previous meeting not 
being advertised.  Brenda Dalin made a motion to approve the minutes, seconded by 
Chevalier Ruff. 
 
Jessica moved to the old business, and gave the council an update on the summer 
overview sessions.  Jessica explained that this year youth staff planned to visit each 
county to do overview session and take applications.  The overview session provide 
parents and youth an opportunity to meet and get to know the staff and vice versa.  
Youth staff has already held overview sessions in Hall, Habersham, Dawson, Franklin, 
and will be in Stephens Co. High School today.  Jessica explained that we have a total of 
39 applications in progress so far.  She asked the group to help youth staff brain storm 
ideas for the process and contact for next year because not all counties had youth 
attend the sessions. Staff also plans to debrief in January to work on ideas of what can 
be done differently. 
 
Tina Pratt, Northeast GA Housing Authority asked if there is a complication with the 
parent attending the overview session. Danielle Avelar, Youth Case Manger explained 
that with early notification, accommodations can be made.  She spoke with a mother 
who was going to be in the hospital on the day of the overview and mailed an 
application packet to her ahead of time so the youth could still come to overview. 
 
Jessica explained that having a small turn out in some of the counties is ok, but we are 
concerned about the ones that have no applicants at all.  She also explained that not all 
youth that apply are eligible and suitable for services. 



Minutes 
Youth Council Meeting 

Georgia Mountains Workforce Development 
January 15, 2013 ~ Northeast Georgia Housing Authority 

                Toccoa, GA  
 

 
Tina Pratt stated that the Housing Authority has a Youth Leadership Council and most of 
the kids would qualify.  She asked the question of how information of the overviews was 
given out.   
 
Jessica explained that the packet information was sent to all the schools in the 13 
county region addressed to the counselors, graduation coach, special education 
teachers and chairs, school social workers and others.   
 
Chevalier asked if notices of the overviews were advertised in the papers and Jessica 
responded that, they were possibly in the community ads. 
 
Brenda Dalin, Ninth District Opportunity made the suggestion of advertising next year in 
the churches.  Scott Crain, Hall Co. Parent Mentor suggested that we contact the parent 
mentors in all of the counties. 
 
Jessica explained that we sent information to contacts given to us by the board and 
council this year, but that the council let her know of other contacts, so they can be 
added to the list. She went on to say that with having Patrick Shuler, Youth Program 
Assistant, out in the schools during the year will help bring in more youth. 
 
Jessica announced that the mobile units will be arriving later in the day today.  One of 
the units will be housed at the school bus depot in Dawson Co. and the other will be 
housed at the bus depot in Union Co.  The units will be used in community events, both 
are equipped with smart boards, computers and televisions.  The units are available for 
other agencies to rent.  Jessica explained that the cost associated with the mobile units 
would be for the driver.  
 
Scott Crain asked if one of the units could be available on February 12, 2013 for the 
Youth with Disabilities Transition and Career Expo.  He also invited all of the council to 
attend.  Jessica said that she would speak with John Phillips, director and get back to 
him. 
 
Jessica updated the group on the Gache initiative. She explained that Workforce 
Development may still partner with Gache but on a smaller scale for a literacy program.  
The development of the program is still underway and she will continue to provide 
updates as she gets them. 
 
Jessica talked about Project Life in Forsyth Co.  The program is similar to Project Search 
that youth services are currently partnered with, but will not be able to partner with 



Minutes 
Youth Council Meeting 

Georgia Mountains Workforce Development 
January 15, 2013 ~ Northeast Georgia Housing Authority 

                Toccoa, GA  
 

Project Life.  Under common measures youth must graduate, enroll in secondary 
education, or find employment.  Jessica explained that she did not feel Project Life 
would be a good fit because their main focus is employment and the program does not 
have an educational component and would not help us meet the performance 
measures. 
 
Danielle spoke to the council about Jessie’s House in Forsyth Co.  Jessie’s House is a 
group home for girls ages 11-18. Girls that are 18 begin to transition out of the home.  
The group home can shelter up to 12 girls at a time.  Danielle explained that she had 
talked to the Director and Program Coordinator about starting a life skills program.  
Workforce Development would contract with a life skills coach to teach the girls life 
skills on Saturdays for 2 hours.  The youth would be given the Casey Life Skills 
Assessment to point out what life skills need to be targeted on an individual basis.  
Unfortunately, the Director re-signed and the whole staff has been replaced.  Danielle 
has contacted the new director and explained the program that was in the works and he 
seemed interested and she hopes that he brings the girls in on January 24th when we 
have the overview in Forsyth.  She is also working with Bald Ridge Lodge, a group home 
for boys. 
 
Scott Crain suggested that Danielle get in touch with the youth’s CASA member so that 
staff could keep up with the girls. 
 
Chevalier Ruff, Vice Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
Next meeting is scheduled for March 21, 2013 at the new Hart County City Hall.  Jessica 
will schedule out meetings for the rest of the year and put them on the GMRC website. 
 
 
 
 
 
Recorders Signature: _____Ebony Tucker_____________ Date: ____1/29/2013____ 
 
 

   


